
 

Page 1 of 4 

Notice of Meeting  
 

Communities, Environment and 
Highways Select Committee  

 

Date & time Place Contact Chief Executive  
Monday, 13 January 
2025 at 2.00 pm 

Council Chamber, 
Woodhatch Place 11 
Cockshot Hill, 
Woodhatch, Reigate, 
RH2 8EF 
 

Dilip Agarwal, Scrutiny 
Officer 
 
dilip.agarwal1@surreycc.gov.uk 

Terence Herbert 

 

 
Elected Members 

Catherine Baart (Earlswood & Reigate South), John Beckett (Ewell), Luke Bennett (Banstead, 
Woodmansterne & Chipstead), Liz Bowes (Woking South East), Natalie Bramhall (Cabinet 

Member for Property, Waste and Infrastructure) (Cabinet Member), Stephen Cooksey (Dorking 
South & the Holmwoods), Andy MacLeod (Farnham Central), Jan Mason (West Ewell), Cameron 

McIntosh (Oxted), Lance Spencer (Goldsworth East & Horsell Village) (Vice-Chairman), Mark 
Sugden (Hinchley Wood, Claygate and Oxshott) (Vice-Chairman), Richard Tear (Bagshot, 
Windlesham and Chobham), Buddhi Weerasinghe (Lower Sunbury & Halliford) and Keith 

Witham (Worplesdon) (Chairman) 
 

 
 

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in another format, e.g. large  
print or braille, or another language, please email Dilip Agarwal, Scrutiny Officer on  
dilip.agarwal1@surreycc.gov.uk. 
 
This meeting will be held in public at the venue mentioned above and may be webcast live.  
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering the meeting room  
and using the public seating area or attending online, you are consenting to being filmed  
and recorded, and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for  
webcasting and/or training purposes. If webcast, a recording will be available on the  
Council’s website post-meeting. The live webcast and recording can be accessed via the  
Council’s website: 
 

https://surreycc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 
If you would like to attend and you have any special requirements, please email Dilip  
Agarwal, Scrutiny Officer on dilip.agarwal1@surreycc.gov.uk. Please note that public  
seating is limited and will be allocated on a first come first served basis. 

We’re on Twitter: 
@SCCdemocracy

 
 

mailto:dilip.agarwal1@surreycc.gov.uk
https://surreycc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 
Page 2 of 4 

 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 

Members of the public and the press may use social media or mobile devices in silent  
mode during meetings. Public Wi-Fi is available; please ask the committee manager for  
details.  
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at Council meetings. Please liaise  
with the committee manager prior to the start of the meeting so that the meeting can be  
made aware of any filming taking place.  
 
The use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is  
subject to no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to any Council  
equipment or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile  
devices to be switched off in these circumstances. 
 

Thank you for your co-operation 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
The Select Committee is responsible for the following areas: 
 

• Waste and recycling 

• Highways 

• Major infrastructure 

• Investment/Commercial Strategy (including Assets) 

• Economic Growth 

• Housing 

• Local Enterprise Partnerships 

• Countryside 

• Planning 

• Aviation and Sustainable Transport 

• Flood Prevention 

• Emergency Management 

• Community Engagement and Safety 

• Fire and Rescue 

• Trading Standards 



 
Page 3 of 4 

AGENDA 
 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and notification of substitutes. 
 

 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of interest. 
 
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter: 
 

1. Any disclosable pecuniary interests; or 
2. Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any 

item(s) of business being considered at this meeting. 
 
NOTES: 
 

• Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item 
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

• As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of 
which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or 
civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a 
spouse or civil partner). 

• Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the 
discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be 
reasonably regarded as prejudicial 

 

 

3  CALL-IN: DECISION ON SURREY ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP 
AND JOINT WASTE SOLUTIONS 
 
To consider a call-in received on the decision taken by Cabinet on the 
Surrey Environment Partnership and Joint Waste Solutions. 
 

(Pages 5 
- 18) 

4  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 
That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Act. 
 

 



 
Page 4 of 4 

 
  

PART TWO - IN PRIVATE 
 

 

5  CALL-IN: DECISION ON SURREY ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP 
AND JOINT WASTE SOLUTIONS 
 
To consider a call-in received on the decision taken by Cabinet on the 
Surrey Environment Partnership and Joint Waste Solutions. 
 
Confidential:  Not for publication under Paragraph 3, 5 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information)  
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.  
 

(Pages 
19 - 30) 

6  PUBLICITY FOR PART 2 ITEMS 
 
To consider whether the item considered under Part 2 of the agenda 
should be made available to the Press and public. 
 

 

7  DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 
To note the next public meeting of the Committee is scheduled to be held 
on Wednesday, 12 February 2025. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Terence Herbert 
Chief Executive 

Published: Friday, 3 January 2025 
 
 

   
FIELD_TITLE 



COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENT HIGHWAYS 

SELECT COMMITTEE 

13 JANUARY 2025 

CALL-IN: DECISION ON SURREY 

ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP AND JOINT WASTE 

SOLUTIONS. 
 

Purpose of report: The Select Committee has called in the Cabinet decision from 

17 December 2025 relating to the Surrey Environment Partnership and Joint Waste 

Solutions. 

 

Introduction: 

 

1. On 17 December 2024, Cabinet took an in principle decision for Surrey County 
Council (SCC) to bring back the functions and associated funding to SCC for 
the Surrey Environment Partnership and Joint Waste Solutions. These 
proposals were not subject to pre-decision scrutiny by the Select Committee. 
 

2. Following concerns raised, the Vice-Chairman of the Select Committee decided 
to call-in the decision for reconsideration. The call-in form received by 
Democratic Services on 27 December 2024 is attached as Annex 2. 

 

Background 

 

3. Decision text: 
 
RESOLVED: 

 

1. That Cabinet agrees the principle of SCC bringing back the Functions and 

associated funding to SCC and to delegate authority to the Executive Director 

for Environment, Property & Growth in consultation with the Deputy Chief 

Executive and Executive Director of Resources and the Director of Law and 

Governance to take such actions and decisions as are necessary to facilitate 

the manner and mechanisms through which this decision can be most suitably 

implemented. 

 

Reasons for Decisions: 

• Surrey County Council (‘SCC’) transferred several of its activities 

(“Functions”), to encourage better recycling, to the JWS team in 2018 through 

an Inter Authority Agreement. As part of the process, six full time employees 

of SCC staff were TUPE transferred to SHBC to undertake the Functions for 

JWS. 

Page 5

Item 3



• JWS is the partnership organisation which manages a joint waste collection 

contract with Amey on behalf of Surrey Heath, Elmbridge, Mole Valley and 

Woking Councils. Surrey Heath Borough Council (“SHBC”) hosts JWS and 

provides line management and back-office functions (e.g. HR). 

• The Functions transferred include activities to encourage better recycling by 

Surrey residents: communications and website hosting; data gathering and 

interpretation; project administration and governance; processing of some 

payments; and encouragement of food waste collections.   

• The wider Surrey Environment Partnership (“SEP”) forum includes all eleven 

District and Boroughs (‘D&Bs’) as the Waste Collection Authorities (“WCA”) 

for Surrey, and the group comes together with SCC at a number of meetings 

over the year. These meetings are part of the Functions and will be organised 

by SCC going forward if this recommendation is approved. 

• The current arrangement is no longer felt suitable to meet the strategic needs 

of SCC in reducing its exposure to policy changes. Policy measures will have 

a disproportionate impact on SCC as the Waste Disposal Authority (“WDA”) 

as set out in paragraph below. To mitigate these, SCC needs to: engage with 

the public (communications, recycling behaviour); have access to data; and to 

have financial control on project expenditure.  

• SCC clearly supports the concept of partnership with the D&Bs and would like 

to see a closer and more effective relationship with all 11 Councils. However, 

SCC feels that as long as the Functions and SEP administration remains 

subsumed within JWS (and hosted by Surrey Heath BC) then the wider 

strategic needs of the SCC will not be met.  

• The recommendation to SCC members is to relocate the Functions back into 

SCC, noting that this could involve the transfer of affected staff under TUPE 

transfers and some reorganisation of the service. Officers believe this would 

allow JWS to focus on its needs, and for SCC to mitigate its exposure to 

potentially very costly waste policy changes.  

 

4. A separate part 2 report containing information which is exempt from Access to 
Information Requirements by virtue of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 
1972, paragraph 3, “Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information”) was also 
presented to Cabinet and this is not available to the public.  
 

5. The following documents in relation to the decision made on 17 December 2024 are 
attached: 

 

• Annex 1 – Part 1 report considered by Cabinet on 17 December 2024 

• Annex 2 – Call-in notice received by Democratic Services on 27 
December 2024. 

 

 

Page 6



And in Part 2: 

• Annex 3 – Part 2 report considered by Cabinet on 17 December 2024 
(confidential annex) 
 

The Call-In Process: 

 

6. The Select Committee is asked to consider the above evidence alongside any 
evidence presented by witnesses at the call-in meeting in order to review the 
decision taken by Cabinet.  
 

7. The Select Committee is asked to consider whether it wishes to refer the 
decision back to Cabinet for reconsideration. 

 
8. If the Select Committee decides to refer back to Cabinet, it must provide its 

reasons for doing so. 
 

Recommendations: 

 

That the Select Committee reviews the Cabinet decision taken on 17 December 

2024 and concludes whether it wishes to refer this back to Cabinet for 

reconsideration. 

 

Next steps: 

 

Should the Select Committee decide to support the decision of Cabinet, the decision 

will be implemented. 

 

Should the Select Committee refer the decision back, it will need to be reconsidered 

by Cabinet, where a final decision will be adopted. 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

Report contact: Dilip Agarwal, Scrutiny Officer 

Contact details: Dilip.Agarwal1@surreycc.gov.uk 

 

Annexes: 

• Annex 1 – Part 1 report considered by Cabinet on 17 December 2024 

• Annex 2 – Call-in notice received by Democratic Services on 27 
December 2024. 

 

And in Part 2: 

• Annex 3 – Part 2 report considered by Cabinet on 17 December 2024 
(confidential annex) 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL  

CABINET  

DATE: 17 DECEMBER 2024 

REPORT OF CABINET 
MEMBER: 

NATALIE BRAMHALL, CABINET MEMBER FOR 
PROPERTY, WASTE AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

LEAD OFFICER: SIMON CROWTHER INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
OF ENVIRONMENT, PROPERTY AND GROWTH 

SUBJECT: SURREY ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP AND JOINT 
WASTE SOLUTIONS 

ORGANISATION 
STRATEGY 
PRIORITY AREA: 

HIGH PERFORMING COUNCIL 

 

Purpose of the Report: 

A separate part 2 report contains information which is exempt from Access to 

Information Requirements by virtue of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972, 

paragraph 3, “Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that information”). 

The Report is to recommend the withdrawal of administration and project 

management functions (the “WDA Partnership Functions” or “Functions”) carried out 

by the Joint Waste Service (“JWS”) and return those Functions (as set out in 

paragraph 4 below) previously carried out by Surrey County Council to Surrey 

County Council (“SCC”).  The Functions and related staff were transferred to JWS 

under an Inter Authority Agreement in 2018 and are performed by staff in the Joint 

Waste Services (“JWS”) team hosted by Surrey Heath Borough Council (“SHBC”). 

The recommendation is to bring the Functions (and related staff) back into SCC.  

The Surrey Environment Partnership (“SEP”) is a forum for SCC (as the Waste 

Disposal Authority) and the Surrey District and Boroughs (as Waste Collection 

Authorities) to work together. The withdrawal of the Functions from JWS will in no 

way affect the operation of SEP.  

This piece of work helps Surrey County Council meet its high performing council 

priority objective and No One Left Behind because it seeks to respond to on-going 

and forecasted changes in waste policy and legislation which will have a 

disproportionate impact on SCC’s revenue budget.  

 

 

 

Page 231

11

Item 11

Page 9



 
 

Recommendations: 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 

1. Agrees the principle of SCC bringing back the Functions and associated 

funding to SCC and to delegate authority to the Executive Director for 

Environment, Property & Growth in consultation with the Deputy Chief 

Executive and Executive Director of Resources and the Director of Law and 

Governance to take such actions and decisions as are necessary to facilitate 

the manner and mechanisms through which this decision can be most suitably 

implemented. 

 

Reason for Recommendations: 

2. Surrey County Council (‘SCC’) transferred several of its activities 

(“Functions”), to encourage better recycling, to the JWS team in 2018 through 

an Inter Authority Agreement. As part of the process, six full time employees 

of SCC staff were TUPE transferred to SHBC to undertake the Functions for 

JWS. 

3. JWS is the partnership organisation which manages a joint waste collection 

contract with Amey on behalf of Surrey Heath, Elmbridge, Mole Valley and 

Woking Councils. Surrey Heath Borough Council (“SHBC”) hosts JWS and 

provides line management and back-office functions (e.g. HR). 

4. The Functions transferred include activities to encourage better recycling by 

Surrey residents: communications and website hosting; data gathering and 

interpretation; project administration and governance; processing of some 

payments; and encouragement of food waste collections.   

5. The wider Surrey Environment Partnership (“SEP”) forum includes all eleven 

District and Boroughs (‘D&Bs’) as the Waste Collection Authorities (“WCA”) 

for Surrey, and the group comes together with SCC at a number of meetings 

over the year. These meetings are part of the Functions and will be organised 

by SCC going forward if this recommendation is approved. 

6. The current arrangement is no longer felt suitable to meet the strategic needs 

of SCC in reducing its exposure to policy changes. Policy measures will have 

a disproportionate impact on SCC as the Waste Disposal Authority (“WDA”) 

as set out in paragraph 10 below. To mitigate these, SCC needs to: engage 

with the public (communications, recycling behaviour); have access to data; 

and to have financial control on project expenditure.  

7. SCC clearly supports the concept of partnership with the D&Bs and would like 

to see a closer and more effective relationship with all 11 Councils. However, 

SCC feels that as long as the Functions and SEP administration remains 

subsumed within JWS (and hosted by Surrey Heath BC) then the wider 

strategic needs of the SCC will not be met.  

Page 232

11

Page 10



 
 

8. The recommendation to SCC members is to relocate the Functions back into 

SCC, noting that this could involve the transfer of affected staff under TUPE 

transfers and some reorganisation of the service. Officers believe this would 

allow JWS to focus on its needs, and for SCC to mitigate its exposure to 

potentially very costly waste policy changes.  

 

Executive Summary: 

9. The current arrangements for JWS are governed by the Inter-Authority 

Agreement between Elmbridge Borough Council, Mole Valley District Council, 

Surrey Heath Borough Council, Woking Borough Council and Surrey County 

Council which relate to the discharge of waste collection functions by a joint 

committee for the joint contract for waste collection and street cleaning 

services, dated 5th June 2017, as amended by the variation agreement dated 

2 August 2018. The latter variation transferred some SCC activities (referred 

to as “WDA partnership activities” and referred to here as the “Functions”) to 

JWS along with certain staff and associated funding for those posts. 

10. The main driver for the change to the current arrangements is the impact of 

incoming government policies for waste, which are being introduced over the 

next few years, notably: 

a. The Environment Act 2021 will introduce a new funding stream for the 

collection and disposal of recyclables through Extended Producer 

Responsibility (‘EPR’). This new legislation will impose a levy on 

commercial packaging providers (such as those who use plastic 

containers) and the funds collected will be paid to Councils to support 

recycling activities. How the funds will flow between Surrey D&Bs (as 

Waste Collection Authorities) and SCC as the Waste Disposal 

Authority (‘WDA’) is unclear. 

b. EPR may remove the obligation on SCC to make payments to the 

WCAs (including Recycling Credits) to support their collection costs. As 

these payments also partly fund the administration costs of the SEP 

activities and Functions provided by JWS on behalf of SCC, it is not 

clear whether WCAs in receipt of EPR payments will then commit to 

funding JWS administration costs from their own budgets. 

c. Simpler Recycling will require WCAs to increase the materials they 

collect from the kerbside, i.e. plastic film, flexible plastic pouches, 

cartons and aerosol. This will have a knock-on effect on SCCs waste 

infrastructure in the county, requiring more space at Waste Transfer 

Stations (“WTS”) and requiring SCC to amend dry recycling disposal 

contracts, potentially leading to increased costs.  

d. The introduction of the UK Emissions Trading Scheme (‘ETS’) for 

waste will create new financial pressures on SCC as the WDA. ETS is 

Page 233

11

Page 11



 
 

a levy imposed on waste tonnage sent to Energy Recovery Facilities 

(‘ERF’) and is potentially a new burden of £40-£50 per tonne. Given 

SCC currently send 200,000 tonnes of waste to ERFs, this could be a 

potential burden each year of up to £10m per year. Mitigation 

measures will require SCC to assist the public in better understanding 

and increasing recycling levels, and the avoidance of fossil-based 

waste in the residual waste stream. 

11. These legislative changes are expected to dramatically alter the risk profile of 

SCC (as the WDA). SCC will be liable for ETS payments related to fossil-

based waste but would have no control over the amount of such waste placed 

in the residual stream (i.e. in black bags). SCC is of the view that it would 

need to take a much greater communication role with Surrey residents on the 

impact of waste in black bags, to mitigate its exposure to ETS levies. 

12. In light of the above, the second driver for the change relates to control and 

governance: 

a. SCC is concerned that the governance arrangements for WDA 

Functions carried out by JWS are not future-proof, and the risks to 

SCC arising from the new government policies will be compounded by 

the current constitution. 

b. SCC is also aware that the four authorities within the JWC are engaged 

in a dispute with Amey and are preparing to reprocure waste collection 

services ahead of the expiry of the Amey contract in 2027. SCC 

concludes that these pressures will inevitably impact the JWS staff in 

joint roles and may limit their capacity to focus on SCC’s strategic 

priorities. 

13. We therefore believe it will be beneficial to formally decouple the Functions 

from JWS and consolidate them with other responsibilities being delivered 

directly by SCC’s in-house waste management team. 

14. The third driver which is financial is described further in the Part 2 report. 

15. Should SCC Cabinet approve the proposed changes, SCC funding to JWS for 

the WDA partnership activities would be anticipated to cease from 31 March 

2025. 

16. SCC intends to make the transition in a fair and transparent way, meeting its 

obligations and with due regard to the staff who will naturally be concerned for 

their future 

17. Given the nature of these changes there may be Transfer of Undertakings 

(Protection of Employment) (TUPE) implications for some staff within JWS. 

This would mean that affected employees who are wholly or mainly assigned 

to these Functions could transfer employment to SCC under their current 

Page 234

11

Page 12



 
 

terms and conditions of employment, ensuring the protection of their rights 

throughout the transition. 

18. Staff transferring under TUPE to SCC would join the Council’s waste team to 

help in the preparation of measures to help SCC mitigate its financial 

exposure under the new waste measures.  Incoming staff would be asked to: 

a. Work closely with D&Bs to encourage partnership, whole system 

working, to maximise government funding of Surrey waste and 

recycling activities; 

b. Implement communications strategies to support residents in 

understanding the new waste policies coming into force, encourage 

residents to decarbonisation residual waste (black bag waste), and 

increase recycling by residents at the kerbside and Community 

Recycling Centres (CRCs); 

c. Manage specific projects aimed at supporting residents to minimise 

waste, increase recycling and avoid contamination in recycling at the 

kerbside; 

d. Manage specific projects aimed at trialling initiatives for difficult to 

recycle materials, from both the kerbside and CRCs; and 

e. Assist with data collection, interpretation and analysis. 

19. The core opportunity is to mitigate SCC’s exposure to new waste burdens 

such as ETS and maximise the benefits of the proposed strategic 

infrastructure. 

 

Link to Strategic Infrastructure Waste Plan 

20. The Council, as the statutory Waste Disposal Authority (‘WDA’), is responsible 

for the bulking, transport, treatment, and disposal of all household-collected 

waste by the 11 WCAs and the disposal of waste delivered to the County’s 15 

Community Recycling Centres (‘CRCs’). It has always been in the interest of 

the WDA to encourage greater recycling by residents, and this was 

traditionally funded by recycling credits paid to WCAs.  

21. Given the scale of legislative and policy changes in the public sector waste 

environment, SCC now believe that its statutory obligations and operational 

interests will be best served by the Council having greater responsibility for 

encouraging minimisation, decarbonisation and recycling by residents.  

22. Returning the Functions to SCC, would enable greater coherence between 

SCCs infrastructure developments, D&Bs and our residents.  A whole 

systems approach will allow for efficiencies to be realised, and a joined-up 

Page 235

11

Page 13



 
 

approach will support in the effective implementation of our Strategic Waste 

Infrastructure Plan.  

 

Consultation: 

23. This proposal is to move the WDA Partnership Functions from JWS at Surrey 

Heath Borough Council (SHBC) back to SCC.  Formal consultation will take 

place with affected staff in SHBC as a number of staff may be eligible for 

transfer to SCC under TUPE legislation. 

 

24. Engagement on this matter has taken place at Surrey Chief Executives’ and 

Surrey Leaders’ meetings.  

 

25. The proposal has been discussed at meetings of the Surrey Environment 

Partnership both the Officers group and, separately, the Members group. 

 

Risk Management and Implications: 

26. Risks are set out in Part 2 

 

Financial and Value for Money Implications:  

27. The decision is not driven by financial efficiencies, although an opportunity to 

review expenditure for delivery of the Functions may drive future changes.  

  

28. SCC’s direct contributions to SEP & JWS and the funding provided to JWS via 

the top slicing of SCC recycling support payments to D&Bs would be 

withdrawn, with a proportion of this needing to be retained within the waste 

budget to deliver the functions which would be returned to SCC. 

 

Section 151 Officer Commentary:  

29. The Council continues to operate in a very challenging financial environment.  

Local authorities across the country are experiencing significant budgetary 

pressures.  Surrey County Council has made significant progress in recent 

years to improve the Council’s financial resilience and whilst this has built a 

stronger financial base from which to deliver our services, the cost-of-service 

delivery, increasing demand, financial uncertainty and government policy 

changes mean we continue to face challenges to our financial position. This 

requires an increased focus on financial management to protect service 

delivery, a continuation of the need to deliver financial efficiencies and reduce 

spending to achieve a balanced budget position each year.  

 

30. In addition to these immediate challenges, the medium-term financial outlook 

beyond 2024/25 remains uncertain. With no clarity on central government 

Page 236

11

Page 14



 
 

funding in the medium term, our working assumption is that financial 

resources will continue to be constrained, as they have been for most of the 

past decade. This places an onus on the Council to continue to consider 

issues of financial sustainability as a priority, in order to ensure the stable 

provision of services in the medium term.  

 

31. The proposed approach provides a means for the Council to respond to waste 

policy changes including mitigating its exposure to future ETS charges. As 

such the recommendations, subject to the definition and quantification of the 

costs associated with returning these services and functions to SCC including 

any TUPE implication and being affordable with the Council’s Medium Term 

Financial Strategy, will deliver the outlined MTFS efficiency. Further financial 

implications are set out in Part 2 to this report.   

 

 

Legal Implications – Monitoring Officer: 

32. SCC entered into a pre-existing Inter-Authority Agreement dated 5 June 2017 

by way of a variation agreement dated 5 August 2018 (“IAA”) which set out 

arrangements between SCC and four D&Bs to facilitate the Functions jointly.  

SCC will need to consider the most effective means by which to bring matters 

to an acceptable conclusion under the IAA. 

 

Equalities and Diversity: 

33. An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is not required for this decision.  The 

impact of the decision will be to transfer affected staff from Surrey Heath 

Borough Council to Surrey County Council.  The obligations under the 

Equality Act (2010) apply to both organisations equally.  

 

Other Implications:  

34. The potential implications for the following council priorities and policy areas 

have been considered. Where the impact is potentially significant a summary 

of the issues is set out in detail below. 

  

Page 237

11

Page 15



 
 

 

Area assessed: Direct Implications: 

Corporate Parenting/Looked After Children None 
 

Safeguarding responsibilities for vulnerable 
children and adults   

None 
 

Environmental sustainability n/a 
 

Compliance against net-zero emissions target 
and future climate compatibility/resilience 

n/a 
 

Public Health 
 

None 

 

What Happens Next: 

35. In accordance with the proposed delegated authority SCC would seek a 

mechanism to withdraw from the IAA by 31 March 2025. SCC is permitted to 

make this step under the terms of the Inter-Authority Agreement. For SCC, 

this would mean resuming responsibility for the ‘Functions. 

 

36. SCC would work with SHBC and other parties to ensure the smooth transition 

of affected staff and services having due regard for obligations under relevant 

legislation (e.g. TUPE) and for working in partnership with the eleven D&Bs in 

Surrey.  

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Report Author: Steven Foster Interim Director of Waste 

steven.foster@surreycc.gov.uk  

 

Consulted: 

• SHBC Employee informal consultation taking place.  

 

Annexes: 

None 

 

Sources/background papers: 

Cabinet Paper December 2016: Developing a single waste approach 

Cabinet Paper November 2017: Changes to payments to district and borough 

councils for the recycled waste they collect  

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Page 238

11

Page 16



 
Form to call in a decision – please complete all fields marked * 
 
If you require any assistance, please contact Democratic Services on 020 
8541 9122.  
 
Your Details 
 
First Name *  
 
Surname * 
 
 
Decision-making body *  

X / Cabinet 

 Committees in Common 

 Strategic Investment Board 

 Buckinghamshire Council and Surrey Couty Council Trading Standards 
Joint Committee  

 
Decision taken * 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
Date decision taken *  
 
Reason(s) for calling in the decision  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Desired outcome 

 
 
 
 
Identified evidence 
 
 
 
Desired Witnesses 
 
 
 
 

Lance 

Spencer 

Approval to bring back in-house the functions previously transferred to 
Joint Waste Solutions. 

17 December 2024 

The proposal on which the decision was made lacks the detail necessary 
for even an ‘in principle’ decision to be made. 
 
 
 
    
 
The SCC proposal lacks detail and is contradictory in nature. 
 
It has been an announcement to the district and borough councils and 
not a thorough consultation. 
 
No consideration appears to have been given to the impact on the joint 
contract authorities both in terms of service delivery and financials. 
 
The timeline is too short and does not allow consideration to be given to 
emerging policy both in waste and wider local government. 

Decision to be revoked so that more evidence can be presented to SEP 
for members to reach a consensus on the way forward and the timescale 
of any changes to SEP functions.  

 

Cabinet Member for Property, Waste and Infrastructure 
Steven Foster Interim Director of Waste 
Legal Representative to explain the legal risks 
 
 
 

Page 17



 
 
Member calling in decision 
1. Member *  
 
Date of call-in 
 
 
2. Member 
 
3. Member 
 

Committee responsible for examining this decision 

 Adults and Health 
 

X / Communities, Environment & 
Highways  

  
 Children, Families & Lifelong 

Learning  
 Resources & Performance 

  
 
Call-in by Select Committee 
Select Committees have the power to call in decisions made, but not yet 
implemented, by the Cabinet and/or committees of the Cabinet if they feel that 
the decision is inappropriate. Implementation will be delayed while the Select 
Committee meets. 
 
A decision can be ‘called in’ for scrutiny by the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of 
the relevant Committee or by any two or more Committee members from 
more than one political party. A decision must be ‘called in’ within five days of 
publication of the decision by the Cabinet and/or local committees (decisions 
must be published within three working days of the Cabinet and/or local 
committee meeting). The Chairman of the Select Committee must then call a 
meeting of the Committee within another ten working days. 
 
The Select Committee can interview the Cabinet Member and/or Council 
officers and make recommendations to the decision-maker suggesting 
improvements to the decision. 
 
Issues to consider when deciding whether to call in a decision: 

• Has the Cabinet adequately taken account of the appropriate Select 
Committee’s views? 

• Can the query be satisfied without a call-in? 

• Is call-in constitutionally possible (e.g. Is the issue a Cabinet decision)? 

• Can you build the case for a call-in? You will need to work with the 
Democratic Services Officer for the Committee to identify evidence and 
plan an approach. 

 
Please submit your call in form to the Scrutiny Business Manager who will 
liaise with the Monitoring Officer and will take a view on whether this call in 
can proceed.  

Lance Spencer, Vice-Chair of CEH SC 

27 December 2024 

 

 

Page 18



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 CALL-IN: DECISION ON SURREY ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP AND JOINT WASTE SOLUTIONS
	Annex 1–Report considered by Cabinet on 17 December 2024 (Pt.1)
	11 SURREY ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP AND JOINT WASTE SOLUTIONS

	Annex 2–Call-in notice received by Democratic Services on 27 December 2024 (Pt. 1)

	5 CALL-IN: DECISION ON SURREY ENVIRONMENT PARTNERSHIP AND JOINT WASTE SOLUTIONS
	5.2–Annex 3-Part 2 report considered by Cabinet on 17 December 2024 (confidential annex) (Pt. 2)


